
CITY OF STOCKTON 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) 

TO PROVIDE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
(PUR 16-031) 

 
POSTED 3/16/17 
 
The City received six (6) sets of inquiries. The City’s responses are in blue. 
 
From: Candice Sharar [mailto:csharar@chandlerasset.com]  
Sent: Thursday, March 09, 2017 10:36 AM 
To: Jayden Sangha <Jayden.Sangha@stocktonca.gov> 
Cc: Alan Montanelli <Alan.Montanelli@stocktonca.gov> 
Subject: Request for Clarification - City of Stockton Request for Proposal 
for Investment Management Services 
 
Hello, 
Thank you for the opportunity to submit our qualifications to provide Investment 
Management Services to the City of Stockton. I am looking for clarification on the 
following: 
 
1. Fee Proposal - Please confirm that the City desires a Fee Proposal under 

separate cover that is not included as part of the main technical proposal. 
Section 3.0.7 of the proposal package lists Proposal Fee (Under Separate 
Cover). Does the City desire proposers to prepare their fee schedules and 
include in a separate, sealed envelope? 
The fee schedule/proposal must be included under separate cover 
from the rest of your proposal.  A separate, sealed envelope will meet 
this requirement. 

 
2. References – Are references also to be submitted separately, or are they to 

be listed in Assets Under Management, Question D., “List comparable or 
most representative governmental clients. Identify the nature of the funds 
and provide a contact name and number for each.” ? 
 
References should be submitted under Section 3 and they should 
entail the information requested in Question D of Section 2.6.  

 
From: Eddie A Zeiter [mailto:eddie.a.zeiter@ampf.com]  
Sent: Thursday, March 09, 2017 3:55 PM 
To: Jayden Sangha <Jayden.Sangha@stocktonca.gov>; Alan Montanelli 
<Alan.Montanelli@stocktonca.gov> 
Subject: RFP - Investment Management Services - Question... 
 
Hi Jayden and Alan, 
 
1. Who is the investment management firm that is currently advising the City 

of Stockton on portfolio? 



 
Chandler Asset Management 
 

From: Irwin, Gail [mailto:Gail.Irwin@FMR.COM]  
Sent: Thursday, March 09, 2017 9:17 AM 
To: Jayden Sangha <Jayden.Sangha@stocktonca.gov>; Alan Montanelli 
<Alan.Montanelli@stocktonca.gov> 
Cc: Zielinski, Peter <Peter.Zielinski@fmr.com> 
Subject: request for clarifications/questions/ answers 
 
Good afternoon on behalf of Fidelity Investments Institutional Services we are 
requesting clarification/responses to the following questions- listed below.  Thanks 
you in advance for your assistance.  Gail Irwin 
 
Questions for City of Stockton 
 
1. Please provide the high, low and average investment portfolio balance over 

the past 3 years 
 
A detailed information on the City’s investment portfolio balances and 
list of securities currently held in our portfolio can be found on the 
City’s monthly and quarterly statements:  
 
http://www.stocktongov.com/government/departments/adminServices/finInv.html 
 
 

 
A. Is this representative of the expected balances over the next 5 

years? 
 
The expected balances in the City’s reserve portfolio should 
remain fairly constant over the next five years.  Any changes to 
the reserve portfolio would be communicated well in advance. 
 

B. What is the average number of transactions per quarter over the past 
3 years that impact the investment portfolios balance?  
 
The average number of transactions per quarter are dependent 
on maturities and/or the adjustment in portfolio structure.  
 
A detailed list of securities currently held in our portfolio can be 
found on the City’s monthly and quarterly statements: 

 
http://www.stocktongov.com/government/departments/adminServices/finInv.html 

 
C. Is this representative of the expected transactions over the next 5 

years?   
 



 
The average number of transactions are dependent on 
maturities and/or the adjustment in portfolio structure.  
 
The City sees no reason to expect large fluctuations in how the 
reserve portfolio is managed, given that the primary aims for the 
overall portfolio (in priority order) are safety, liquidity and yield.  
 

2. Is the City required to keep the advisor aware of changes to state and local 
laws that may impact the governance of the investment portfolio?  
 
The advisor or investment management firm must keep itself up-to-
date regarding any changes in state laws that may impact governance 
of the investment portfolio.  On an annual basis, the California Debt 
Investment and Advisory Commission (CDIAC) puts out “LOCAL 
AGENCY INVESTMENT GUIDELINES”, which provide guidance and 
includes changes to state legislation as it pertains to investment 
management for local governments.  
 

3. Are the governing investment guidelines for the investment portfolio 
California’s Government Code 53600.5 or the City’s Investment Policy 700-
7? 
 
The investment management firm must adhere to the City’s 
investment policy and any applicable state laws.  The pertinent 
guidelines and related California statutes are covered in the document 
published by CDIAC.  
 

4. Is the City Treasurer required to communicate liquidity requirements so that 
the investment portfolio may be positioned to meet the City’s expected 
liquidity requirements?  
 
The nature of our cash flows is such that, for the most part, liquidity 
is managed through the liquid portion of the portfolio (LAIF and money 
market account).  California Government Code 53646(b)(3) requires 
that we certify in our quarterly report to Council that we are 
maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet 6 months of expected 
expenditures.   

 
5. How does the City define the cash flow characteristics of the investment 

portfolio? 
 
The reserve portfolio is generally not used to meet the City’s 
immediate cash flow needs for operations.  If liquidity is needed, the 
portfolio should be able to provide it at little or no loss, given adequate 
notice from the City, since our investment portfolio generally consists 
of securities ranging from 1-5-years. 
 



 
 

6. Will the winning advisor receive securities-in-kind or cash?  
 
The winning advisor will receive securities in-kind.  

 
A. If securities-in-kind, will the advisor be permitted to sell securities to 

restructure the portfolio? 
  

Restructuring the City’s portfolio can be done with the 
concurrence of the City Treasurer, with consideration given to 
the City’s short and long term cash needs and in adherence to 
the City’s investment policy and applicable state laws.  

 
B. If securities-in-kind or cash, will the advisor be permitted a period of 

30 or 45 days to structure to portfolio prior to measuring 
performance? 

 
The City will consider such action after thoroughly 
understanding and analyzing the proposed portfolio structure 
and investment strategy.  
 

7. How is the advisor able to certify in a quarterly report that the City will meet 
its expenditure obligations for the next 6 months as described in CGC 
Section 53646 (b)(3)? 
 
This certification is provided by the City Treasurer after analyzing the 
City’s investment portfolio structure (including liquid portions), and 
discussing it with the investment management firm. 
 

8. Are negotiated CDs associated with collateral requirements and/or 
geographic and quality limitations? 
 
Negotiated CDs are invested according to the investment policy and 
California state code.  

 
9. Will the City and/or Treasurer be required to approve the list of 

broker/dealers that the advisor utilizes for City’s investment portfolio 
transactions? Would you be willing to allow us to use our own approved 
dealer and counterparty list? 
 
The City Treasurer will be required to approve the list of broker/dealers 
that the advisor utilizes for the City’s investment portfolio 
transactions.  
 
The City will consider any other action after thoroughly understanding 
and analyzing the entire proposed portfolio structure and investment 
strategy.  



 
 
10. Will the City and/or Treasurer be required to approve the list of 

counterparties that the advisor utilizes for City’s investment portfolio 
transactions? 
 
Yes.  

 
11. The Treasurer may sell a security prior to its maturity in order to diminish 

the portfolio’s exposure to market risk. Would this transaction be initiated 
via conversations with the advisor? 
 
The investment management firm will be granted full discretion to 
purchase and sell investment securities in accordance with the City’s 
investment policy and state law.  The firm must always remain in 
compliance with all Federal, State and local laws governing the 
investment of moneys under the control of the City Treasurer, and as 
specified in the California Government Code Section 53600.5, when 
investing, reinvesting, purchasing, acquiring, exchanging, selling and 
managing public funds. 

 
12. Is the City willing to consider a new benchmark that aligns with the stated 

investment objectives and constraints? 
 
The City will consider such action after thoroughly understanding and 
analyzing the entire proposed portfolio structure and investment 
strategy.  

 
13. Are both MBS and ABS securities included under 53601 (o) and limited to 

not more than 20% and AA credit rating or better? 
 
Yes.  
 

14. Does the custodian maintain capabilities that would allow for the automated 
processing of transactions?  
 
Yes; our current custodian is Union Bank N.A. 

 
15. How would describe the current day to day administrative services? 

 
The City does not contact the investment management firm on a daily 
basis.  There are quarterly meetings between the investment 
management firm and the City’s Treasurer and staff.  However, City 
staff can and will reach out to the City’s firm should any questions 
arise.  
 
 
 



16. What is the current fee? 
 
Given the overall composition of the portfolio, the City would like you 
to submit your fee proposals.  A detailed list of securities currently 
held in our portfolio can be found on our monthly and quarterly 
statements: 
 
http://www.stocktongov.com/government/departments/adminServices/finInv.html 
 

17. What is the range of expected fees? 
 
Given the overall composition of the portfolio, the City would like you 
to submit your fee proposals.  A detailed list of securities currently 
held in our portfolio can be found on our monthly and quarterly 
statements: 
 
http://www.stocktongov.com/government/departments/adminServices/finInv.html 
 

 
18. Will you choose more than one manager? 

 
No.  
 

19. Can you provide the evaluation criteria? 
 
Evaluation criteria has been provided in the Specifications.  Please 
see Section 3.1  
 

From: Phillips, Rick [mailto:Rick.Phillips@ftnmainstreet.com]  
Sent: Wednesday, March 08, 2017 6:26 AM 
To: Jayden Sangha <Jayden.Sangha@stocktonca.gov>; Alan Montanelli 
<Alan.Montanelli@stocktonca.gov> 
Subject: Questions/Requests Regarding Investment Management Services 
RFP 
 
1. Please provide the latest monthly investment report which shows the 

investment holdings. 
 
The City’s latest investment reports can be found at the following link:  
 
http://www.stocktongov.com/government/departments/adminServices/finInv.html 
 

  
2. What is the most recent annual investment fee paid to the current 

investment advisor? 
 
Given the overall composition of the portfolio, the City would like you 
to submit your fee proposals.  A detailed list of securities currently 



held in our portfolio can be found on our monthly and quarterly 
statements: 
 
http://www.stocktongov.com/government/departments/adminServices/finInv.html 

  
3. The RFP discusses attending meetings and assisting the City’s CFO with 

the presentation of quarterly statements at City Council 
meeting.  Approximately how often does the current investment advisor 
attend meetings at the City which are not the quarterly meetings 
referenced? 
 
The City’s quarterly investment reports are presented to City Council 
by the City’s CFO/Treasurer.  The City expects the investment 
management team to schedule quarterly in-person meetings to go 
over the investment portfolio in detail and help better understand the 
investment reports and how the economy is effecting the market value 
of the holdings.  The City can also request our investment managers 
to present the investment reports to Council along with the CFO.  

 
From: Mary Rose [mailto:mary.rose@publictrustadvisors.com]  
Sent: Thursday, March 09, 2017 1:45 PM 
To: Alan Montanelli <Alan.Montanelli@stocktonca.gov>; Jayden Sangha 
<Jayden.Sangha@stocktonca.gov> 
Subject: Questions for RFP (PUR 16-031) for Investment Management 
Services 
 
Good afternoon, 
 
1. Regarding RFP (PUR 16-031), please clarify how you would like our 

response structured.  Section 2.5 lists your required information and then 
we see additional questions in section 3.0.1 through 3.0.7.  There seems to 
be some repetition, which section do we answer, or both?  If both, in what 
order?  Many thanks. 

 
Per Section 3.0.1 a cover letter is required along with your proposal.  
This cover letter must include the information outlined in that section 
and will serve as an introduction to your firm.  
 
In addition to the cover letter, information from both sections is 
required in your proposal. Some required information from Section 2.5 
may be found in your response to requested information in Section 3 
or vice versa. 
 
Please see page 2 of the Specifications for details regarding the 
required order of your proposal. 
 
Your fee schedule should be submitted under separate cover. 

 



From: Michael Nguyen [mailto:mnguyen@pmanetwork.com]  
Sent: Thursday, March 09, 2017 8:40 AM 
To: Jayden Sangha <Jayden.Sangha@stocktonca.gov>; Alan Montanelli 
<Alan.Montanelli@stocktonca.gov> 
Subject: RFP Investment Management Services (PUR 16-031) 
 
Hello,  
 
Our firm is interested in responding to the City’s RFP.  We have a few questions 
to submit: 
 

1.  Is the City currently managing the investment portfolio internally, or is it managed 
by an investment firm?  If so, whom? 
 
City’s investment portfolio is currently managed by Chandler Asset 
Management.  
 

2. Can we receive a copy of the existing portfolio holdings?  Is there a specific 
strategy the City is vested in, ie. 0-1 yr, 1-3yr, etc? 
 
The City is currently invested in securities ranging from 1-5-years.  A 
detailed list of securities currently held in our portfolio can be found 
on our monthly and quarterly statements:  
 
http://www.stocktongov.com/government/departments/adminServices/finInv.html 
 

3. Does the investment portfolio consist of operating funds and reserve, or are there 
bond proceeds or perhaps OPEB funds involved? 
 
Chandler Asset Management is managing the City’s reserve portfolio.  
The City maintains a separate liquidity portfolio of holdings in LAIF 
and its main checking account.  There are no bond proceeds included 
in the portfolio.  

 
 
POSTED 3/06/17  
 
PLEASE NOTE: THE INVESTMENT POLICY REFERENCED IN THE 
SPECIFICATONS AS EXHIBIT A IS ACTUALLY ATTACHMENT A AND CAN 
BE FOUND UNDER PLANS, ATTACHMENTS & AGENDAS.  
 
THE ORDER OF EXHIBITS AND ATTACHMENTS IS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
EXHIBIT A: INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (FOUND IN THE 
SPECIFICATIONS) 
EXHIBIT B: SAMPLE CONTRACT (FOUND IN THE SPECIFICATIONS) 
ATTACHMENT A: INVESTMENT POLICY (FOUND IN PLANS, 
ATTACHMENTS & AGENDAS) 
 



POSTED 3/02/17 
 
1.  Communication – please send your communication via email. 
 
2. Questions – the last day to make inquiries is March 9, 2017. 
 
3.  Answers – clarifications and answers will be posted by March 16, 2017. 
 
4.  Proposals due promptly by 2:00 pm, Thursday, March 30, 2017, City Clerk’s 

Office. 
 
 
 


